GiNpRAL
_ AYCONF.2/SR.8
20 Novambir 1951
ENGLISH _
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH AND
EEPN“B -

pual distribution

CONFESENCE OF PLENIPOTEANTIARI=S ON THs STATUS OF
REFUGEES AND STATELESS PERSONS

SUMMARY RECORD OF THi EIGHTH ME-TIRG

held at the palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thuesday, 5 July 1951, &b 3 Ppelle

CONTENTS: | ’ . _ Pages.

- consideration of the draft Convention on the Status
of Refugees (item 5 (a) of the agenda) (A/CONF.2/1 -
and. Corr.l, A/CONF.2/5) (continued): i
1. Article 9 - Artistic rights and industrial
property (4/CONF.2/38, A/CONF.2/39)(resuned .
from the seventh meeting) L -8
2, Article 10 - Right of Associabion (A/CONF.2/35) g w1l
3. Article 11 - Access to Courts (A/CONF.2/31) B & N 15




SRR o

i

page 2

Presentg

Meﬁﬁers:

A/CONF«2/SR.8

Fresgident:

Y

Kustralia
Austria
Belgium
Canada
Denmark

Egypt

Federal Republic of Germany

. France

* Greece

Iraq
Israe}l

Italy

‘Netherlands

Norwsy

. » SWGden ‘ - -

Switzerland (and Liechtenstein)
~Turkey .
United Kingdom of Great Britain

and Northern Ireland
United States of America

Yugoslavia

Qbservers:

Iran

 High Commissioner for Refugees

. e en

¥r. LARSEM

Mr. SHAW

M+, FRITZEn

¥Mr. HERMENT

Mr. CHANCE

Mr, HOEG : ]
MOSTAFA Bey

Mr. von TRUTZSCHLER
Mr. ROCHEFORT
Mr. PAPAYANNIS

©.Mr. Al PACHACHI

Mr. ROBINSOR -
Mr. THEODOLI

Baron van BOETZELAER
Mr. ARFF

Mr. PEERﬁN

. Mr, SCHURCH

Mr. MIRAS

Mr. HOARE

Mr. WARREN
Mr. MAKIEDO

Mr. KAZEMI
Mr. ven HEUVEN GORDHART =~



T e By e

mrasentativea of agaciali.zed agencies and other
intor-ggvemental ormzations: .

Intornational Refugee QOrganisation Mr. SCHNITZER
Council of Europs Mr, von SCHMIEDEN

mreaentgﬁivea of ncn-govemantai organizationa:

°

ate and Reglster .

Caritas Internationalls . Mr. BRAUN o
; : Mr. METTERNICH T
Consultstive Council of _ '
Jewish Organizations Nro MEYROWITZ

Co-ordinating Board of , -

- Jewish Organizations ' Mr. WARBURG |
Friendst World Committee g
for Consultation Mry BELL.

International Federation of : Mrs. FIECHTER

Friends of Young Women . Mrs., GIRCD
' Mrs, van WIRVEXE

pPax Remana ‘ | Mr. BUENSOD

Seerctariat: ‘
‘ Mr,. Humphrey . Executive Secretary - "

Miss Kitchen o Deputy Executive sscret{ari;

-




-pa‘selr SRR .

CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE STATUS OF RuIﬂJGEﬁS (item 5 (a) o.f the
agenda) (A/CONF,2/1 and (:orr.l, A/CONF.2/5) (continued): :

1, Article 9 - Art:.stzc Rights and industrial property (A/CONF. 2/38, A/CONF.2/39)
Zresumed from the seventh meeting)

The PRESIDENT drew attention to the Swedish amendment to artiele 9
; {A/CONF.2/39), which had been introduced orally at the preceding meeting.

. MOSTAFA Bey (Egypt) said that, with regard to the protection of rights
.in literary, artistic and scientific works, international rules already existed in -

the shape o*‘ instruments such as the Berne Conventicn of 1886, the Acts of Paris
of 1896, the Berlin Convention of 1908, the Rome Convertion of 1928, the Madrid
-Convention, anrd 30 on, The eagiest thing would therefore be to state simply that.

- refugees should enjoy the protection of the provisions of those Conventions,

" Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) pointed out that in certain cases the Conventions
ientioned would not be applicable in the case of refugees. Thus, the Berne
5 Convention of 1886 required of persons wishzng to take advantage of its provisions -
~ the fulfilment of the requisite formalities in their countries of origin, rommm
“’whiéh refugees clearly could not .f.‘ulf:.l,

o Mr. PETREN (Sweden) said that in practice the problem might arise in théao
’;forms- first, an author might have published a work prior to his becoming a refugeo,‘_'
i in which case the laws existlng at the date of publication would apply to the work, - Q
"'L,Secondly, refigee might publ:.sh a work in the country of reception; .in that case
: '3‘ the legislation of that country would protect his right.s. Finally, & refugee might
: fpublish a work in a country other than that in which he resided. The question then
‘;arose whether the fact that. the refugee resided in a country of reception would bs | |
aufficient to ensure the protection of his rights, In the circumstances, it seemsd
g i’that mere residence in a receiving country would not be enough, and the Swedish .
g ’delegat.;on had therefore considered it deairable to introduce the idea of domicile
",intgd, the text of article 9, Hence the introduction of its amendment (E/CONF.2/39).




Mr. KOG (Denmark) Sipﬁorted the Swedish proposal.

Mr. FRITZER (Austria) sa:'ld that a distinction could be made between
three kinds of domicile: fixed abode, habitual residence, and temporary
residence, - A refugee had no fixed or ordinary abode, as he had had to abandon
it; “in the circumstances, the only kind of residence possible for him was N
habitual or temporary residence, the latter applying where the refugee moved
about or took a holiday. The fact that the refugee possessed & temporary "
domicile or residence seemed :.nsuff:.c:.ent to ensure the protection of his riglta,

tr

and could not therefore form & proner basis for article 9. Moreover, cert&in
existing intemat. donal metruments made use of criteria which could not be app]ied

to refugees. Thus, the Berne Convention laid down as an essen'bia.l criterion the -
possesgion of a- nationality, a condition that cdould not be fulf:.lled by a- refugee' j;

For those reasons, the Austrian delegation had proposed an amendment (A/GONF 2/38)
intended to, introduce the idea of habitual res:.dence into article 9. ’

msm{m'r (Belgium) fully agreed with the intention of the Austrian
amendment, but observed that its wording did not fully reflect. 'bhat mﬁention. L
Two types of residence were indeed recognized‘ habitual reeldence and . temporary
res:.dmce. The Austrlan Govemment seemed concemed to avoid just such an o

Py

_ admission.

As to the Swedish amendment » he thought that it would not be poss:i.ble tg E

req.tire of a refugee that he possess & domicile in the sense in wh:.ch that tem

was used in the amendment , ~ The Swedieh delegatlon might perhaps be p*epared to

accept the idea of hab:.tual res:.devzce.

Mr. PETRﬁN (Sweden) made it clear that the Swedish delega‘bion was Sl

mainly concerned w:.th eliminating the idea of res:Ldence pure and simple.v Itha.d

the . same ob;;ective as the Austrian. delegat:.on and, if its amendment re,.:.sed

dlfflculties , 1t could, if necessary, acceat the Austr:.an views o

“He pointed out that a conference had recently met at Pards under the auspices

of the United Nations. Educational , Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNDSGO)
to draft a comrention relatn.ng %6 copynght. He bel:.eved that one of the cle.uses



5

discussed at that conference had related %o stateleés pursons. In £hose
circunstances, it would parhaps be desirable to study the texts drawn up at

Paris before any decision was ‘taken on article 9, .

' The PRESIDINT doubbed whether the Conference could derive much
benefit from the work of the UNESCO Committce of Experts, sim;e the latter!s
scope had been limited to the consideration of ’copyright; and the result of

“its deliberations wou:ld not be available for some time., -

Mr. FRITZER (Austria) -noted that ‘the idea of res:.dcnce found
exprossn.on in the Convuntion in a number of difforent technical ‘terms, such as
country of domicile, residence or habitual residence. . It scemed to him
proferable that the Conforence should rostrict itsclf to two terms, namely:
habitual re31dence and tcmporar'y residence,

, Baron van BOETZEI’.AER(Nethcrlands) recalled that he had withdrawn his
amendment (A/OONF,2/33) to article 7, on personal status » because it had seemed
‘that the various delegations took the cxpression “domcile" o0 mean habitual
',rendcncc. That word had been chosen, and it would be desirable to keep to it,
‘Indecd, it would seem that the introduction of the expression Whabitual
“rosiuence” would automatically confez‘- & fresh meaning on the term "domicile", ;

= Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) said the United Kingdom delegation would
.b-l"x‘avc b_bcn satisfied with the original text of article 9, but would not press
for its retention if other delegations considered that it wont too far. The
_fuse of ‘the well-known and c¢lecarly def:med term "domicile" wes approprlate in
'_'article 7, as it constitutoed a criterion for determining the laws that should
_.}»;_xpp]y in respect of the personal status of a rofugec. - As, however, the N

restriction aimed at in article 9 was merely in respect of the period of
:';'reé'i,ldgnce in a reeceiving ecountry, ‘he considered that it would be wrong to
introduce the temm “domicile" into the text of that article, -




"* Alcom.z/sa.sk
L paga - S e

M, PETRCN (Sweden) e.ccx,ptcd the views of the Conference, and would
withdraw his amondmcnt (A/GONF 2/39) in favour of the Austrian. amendment. .
(A/CONF.2/38), provided that tho words "or, if he has no habltual residence y oo
in vhich he resides" were dcletcd. : ~

Mr. FRITZ.ER (Austria) accepted the ch.dlsh “nendxm.nt t.o h:.s “proposal.

Mr. van HEUVEN GOEDHART (United Nations khgh Commissioner for Refugaes) B
drew attention to the fact thot there might bo refugees, for instance, & rt.istos,
musicians and the 1ike, who had no habitual residence,, bub ux'avellcd from country
to country in the coursc of their work, He belicved that thelr :mterests would :
not be covercd unlcss the words "or, if he has no hab.btual rosmence, in whz.c.h

he res:.des" were rct.a.ined. :

Mr, RQCHEFORT (Francc) dlsagrm,d mth 'bh(. ngh Comuss:.oner. o
Rerug"cs had- to have a place of habitual- rcsi dencc 3 othemse it would be
impossible for them to procucd from oné comtry to anothur, m v:Lew ‘of the
tormlities with whlch th:.y would have to omply in ord»r Yo cross a front:.er.

o M HBRIENT (Belgium) S“PUOrtcd the Frcnch representativc, whos'e R ’
obaervation “npca.red all the more cogem whm it was' considered that. any person ;

r )

procoodmg from ono country to anothcr wag rmxdrcd to have'a passport ’ which

was normally 1ssuable only by the author:.tzn,s of tho country in which hc resided.

MOSTAFA Bey (Egypt) sa.w no point in a.bandoning the conccpt ‘of dom:.cile s
vhi.ch was both def:.m.te and generally: undcrstood, and’ vihich. covercd the cxercise'_;
of apccif:.c rights. ' ) T

34.' Lo

B IR ¥

The PR‘:.SIDLNT obsorw.d that there was now no proposal bei‘ore the
Gonterence that' the tom’ "dom:.c:.le" should bc insertmd in a.rt:ucle 9. L

v SIEINRRN TR

Mm ROGHBFORT (Francc) sugges‘ocd t'nat if "domzc:.le“ soemed tnomarrow,'
and "rusuicncc," to0. wide a concuot s "hab:.tual rcsidnnt;e“ constzbuted &z happy :
medium. R L 3 coun’oncs ke Austria which harbourc-.d a considerable numher of
, -romgws were able to ‘,ccup’e that. concopt » it wauld S0 Wise to. selec& it :ln
;.profcrc.ncc to the othorb. . . . P o :



page 8

' While it was truc that it might lack logal precision, it should be
ramambered that refugecs found themsclves in a de facko position before they
enjoyed a de Juroe position.. ‘ o '

The PRESIDENT put to thc vote the Austrian amendment (A/CONF, 2133),
~as further amended by the Swedish proposale

- The Augt _am \1 _,mndgg'r.'wdv ; od by 13 votea. to none
7_shstentions. ‘ ,

As adopted, it read:

"In respect of the protection of industrial property, such as
inventions, industrial designs or models, trade marks, trade namecs,

- ond of rights in literary, scicntific and artistic works, a. refugee
shell be accorded in the country in which he has habitual rcsidence,
the samo protoction as is accorded to nationals of that. country.

 In the torritory of any othor Contracting State, he shall be accorded
tho same prots-tion as is accorded in that torritory to. nationals of
the country in which he has his habitual residenecec.” -

- Baron van BOXTZELAZR (Nctherlands) pointed out that he would have a
~ statament to make in connoxion with paragraph 1 of article 5, which would also
g apply to article 9, when considcration of the former was resumed,  That |
: atatunent would deal with a resorvation which the Nctherlands Government would_.

“roquire to cntor when signing the Convention .

The PRESIDENT put to the vote article 9 as amonded.
; ¥ Q 3 agstegwg B

 2." &g} 1O - Right of Agaoc;at:.on (A/CONF, Z/SR.BS)

| . Mr, SCHURGH (Sthzerlmd) ea.id tha.t tho Swiss delega.tion was not,
Oppoaed to the prineiplu onunciatcd in article 10. In principle, alions in
fSw:ltscrland cnjoyed frecdom of association as one of thc basic rights _
- guarantced by the Swiss Federal Constitution, . However, past cxporicnce had '
shom that the poliey of ncutrality pursucd by Switzcrland in implementation of
:'her :lnternationaa. obligations made it necasaa.ry to impose ecrt.ain mu on: the E



e e D T 7 afconF2/sR.E
i . B pagc9

political. activity of alicns rc.s:.dcnt in the ccuntrys Those limits had been -
fixed citier through prov:.s:.ons in the Constltvtion or through Orders and
Special Instructionse Thcy also applicd to pol:.t:.cal groups of aliens, It
had proved necessary to establish slightly stricter regalations in respect of
rofugecs. In principls, the regulations implementing the Federal Law on the
rosidenco and csbabl:.stnn»nt of nliene debarrcd refugeos from engeging in any
political act:.vity of any kind while in Switgzerland: hencc refugces had ne
right to partic:.patc in the activi ty of political groups or o form such groups
themsolves. - That was ono of the conditiens attached to the granting of asylum,
anc¢ <ts justifxcation could not be disputed. _ :

It might be asked whether article 2, wh:.ch required rcfugees to- con!‘om -
to the laws and regulations of the roceiving country as well as to measures -
taken for the me.intene..nce of public order there, did not already limit the
scope of article 10 in that dircetion, ~ The reply to that question, in the
Swiss dolegation's opinion, was in the nogative, since no oxpress prcviaion ',
exated on tho point. Furthermorc, it might be argued that to treat refugecs .
moro rigoreusly than ot.her alicns in that respoct would constitute a discriminﬂory‘
mcasure. For thosa reasons, whoen signing the con\rcnt:.on, the Swiss Fedcral :
s‘;ovcrxment would be compelled teo cntx.r a rcsurva.tion in rcspect of associaticna
of a political nature, Nevertheless , thc Swiss delegation would be most happy
to hear thc views of other delegat:.ons on that point; should other St.atea sharo
its opmion, the appropriate procedurc would no doubt bc to include an express 7
stimlation in articlc 10 that polltz,cal groups were cxcluded from the bencfit c:!' _
, its provisions, That cond:.t:.on, whilc in\rolving no marked disadvantage sa far as. |
_ refugccs requesting asylum werce concerned, would give receiving countr:.cs some R
guarantoe of gucurity. Impelled by those rcasons, the Swiss dolegation had L
. submitted an amendments to. a.rt:.clo 10 on the 1incs indicated (A/CONF.Z/BS).

v Mr. HER}M\!T (Belgium) pcintcd out that article 10 dcalt with two . _

aspccts of the problem. First, membership of non-profit-makmg aasoc:.a.t::.oné and
trade unions; secondly, the ostablishmcnt of such aeaoc:.ations. “With roga.rd %o
the eccond aspe.ct., the Bclgian Govermncnt was not. in a position tc accord to e



A/GONF z/sa.s
page 10

{

rofugces the most favourable treatment accorded to nationals of a forcign
country. The trcatment of refugecs would, in practice, be that accogded

to clicns in gencral,

MOSTAFA Bey (Egypt) said that thc Bgyptian dclegation would support
tho ‘Swiss amcondmont, Refugees admitted to 2 country should not bo in a
position to cngage in political cetivitics prejudiecial to tho sc.curity of that

cauntry.

Mr, HOARE (United Kingdom) eonsidered that the drafting of article 10
was not wholly satisfactory, sincc thc mcaning of tho text dcﬁendéd on the
titic, which would presumably be deleted £rom the Convention once it was set
out in treaty form. At :&mt stage, the link between the opening words YAs
regards" and the final words "... trectnent aceorded to nationals of a forcign

- _.country, in somc circumstaances" would no longer be clear. Nor was it clear

whether the article rclated to joining associations alonc, or to forming them
also, - )

" Finally, as the United Kingdom delegstion had pointed out on previous
occasions, it would bc necesscry to cnsure tnat thoe torms of article 10 werc
"consistent mtn the various Conventions of the Internationsl Labour Organisation .-

- on the subject,

F g

Mr, PaTREN (chdcn) scid that, owing to the rcgionzl problem facing
his country, to which his delcgation had already referred at o provious moeting, -
the Swodish Government would be uncer the nceessity of cntcring the some sort of

reservation as the Government of Belgium.

. The PRESIVANT recalled that the Ad hoc Committoc had changed the tuxt
of articlc 10 in order to makc it consistcnt with Article 23 (4) of the Universal
Doclaration of Humon Rights., Thet was why the words MAs regards" had been used,

He ruled that the discussion of artiuic 10 was now closed, and that the
~ Confcrence should vote first on the Swiss amchdmont (4/CONF,2/35), to tho offect



CAJCONF.2/sR.8
page 11

that the words Unon~political and! shanld be fnserted before the words e

pon-profit-making associations". o
The S*;riss omundment was adogtcd by 10 votcs to nono, with 9 a.hstamtic;ng.
Article 10, as amundgd, was edoptcd by 16 votes: to _nons, | gg; 3 abgt%tn.ox_z_z_

3 Article 11 = Acgoss to Courts (.a/cm\m‘ 2/31,)

The PRLSIDN\ST reeailcd that tho YugOSlav dolagaﬁicn had aukmitted an
wrondment to porageaph 3 of arbicle 11 (4/CONF,2/31).

Mr. MAKIEDO (Yugoslavia) statcd that the purposc of the Yugoslav
amundmont was to cnsurc that porsons who werc not rcfugcee ghould not be treatod
as such, For instance, thcre was rosident in Argontina 2 group of- persone uho E
had been pronounced to be war erimincle by the Unitoed Nations War Crimos
Cormission, but who were being treated by the Argmtine Govcrnment as refugees.

The PRESIDENT said that the Yugoslav amendment reised a general pmb]_.a_n-‘
which rclated also to articles 7 and 9. It would thorycfore' be difficult to
golve the problam of how a rofugee should be treated in a counﬁry which wes not
the country of his habitu:l residonec sololy in rolation to on article dezling

with access to courts.

Mr, HERENT (Bolgium) agrood with the Prosidont phat the quostion was 2
veiy important one, which might, porhaps, bo made the subjcct of a separate L
erticle. In addition, the cucstion raised a new problem, namely, the manner in
vhich a decision as to whether an individual did or did not possces the atatus

of a rofugvo wag to be reached in the various countr:,es. ,

Mr, ROBINSON (Isracl) "ld not considoer that the purposo of the »
Tugoslav amcndment was in point of foet valid, Once the Convention had beon e
ratified, it would come into force inbor partibus. o Contracting State would
be cble to make.a reservation on article 1, vhich dofin~d the tem "refugec".
Conscquontly, a standard would bo readily available to all Stotes signatordcs, L



AfGONF.c/SR.e i . .
pege 12 ‘ _ .

and it would be easy cnough to ascertain vhother an individual was a refugee
or whethor his claim to be considored as such was vitiated by the exelusion
elausos of article 1. In the casc of Stotes which had not ratified the

Convention, the problem would not in sny casc arisc,

Mr., HERMENT (Belgium) poimted out that a refugee might fail to
rotain that status. A docision taken about him at a given monent might be
reversed as tho result of an cvent which occurrced or camc to light subsaquontly,
It should bo cluarly indicated whether the Stcote making the second ddcision would
be bound by: the first onc, A decision arrived at betweqn Contracting Status
could obviously havc no binding force on States that had not signed the
Convontion. But a sccond investigation into a refuge.'s position might become

noeegssary between the Contracting States thomsolves,

Mr, ROBINSON (Isracl) said that the implications.of paragraph 3 could
best be explaincd in specific terms. .Assuming, for instanec, that the
Governments of the United K:'.ng&om and Yugoslavia werc both parties to the
Convention, and that refugee rosident in the United Kingdom wished to sue a
debtor in Yugoslavia, the lcgal authoritics in the lotter éountry would ask the
United Kingdom authoritics whethor the claimant was a refugec, If the answer
.~ was in the affirmative, the problom would be solved for the Yugoslav Court.
It sccred to him that the issuc was perfuctly straightforward, and that the
| MGénference should guard against creating artificial diffieultics,

Mr. MAKIEDO {Yugoslavia) considerod that the problem to which his
- anondmont rclated cxisted in application to the C.nvention in general. -
He would accordingly withdraw his ancndment for the time being, and subnit a
_proposal of a more general naturc at a later stags.

MOSTAFA Bey (E:ypt) said that article 11 dealt with thrce points:

in the first place, it was proposcd to zccord : refugee free access to the courts

. ""oi' law in his country of rcsidenco. That was a pfbviéion that the Egyptian



A/CORF ,2/SR.8
page 13

dclegation could accapb. Sccondly, there was the question of according a
rcfugec the benefit of legal a ‘_ssutancc. Although that was an arranganent'
usually subjcct to reciprocity ) the Egyptian delegation would agrce to it.

On tho othoer hand, it could not votc for the paragraph which provided that‘

the rofuges should bo oxampt from cautio Jjudicatum solvi, That was a questd.on .
of o principle of continontal law, which had proved itself in practico, In T
Egypt, cxanption fram caubio | judicatun golvi was granted subject to reciprocity,
and for that rcason the Egypt.:n.an dulcgat:.on could not votc for that provision.

Tho PRESIDSNT pointed out o the Heyptian roprosonte’ ivo that lrﬁ.&%le n
stipulated that a refugce should not only hw«. free access to the courts in the .
_country where he resided, but to thc courts in tha tc.rr:x.t.ory of all contractlng
Statcse

Mr. lﬂJRMENT (Belgium) sald that the prictico of ua.zandlng cautio
Judicatum golyi was dying out, end thzt ia Belgiun, for 1nstance, it was no- =
longer required, excopt in cormaercial htigutn.on. Furthornmore, cxcnpt:».on o
from cautio was provided for in onc of the first few clauscs in all bilatoral

troatics.

MOSTAFA Boy (Egypt) asked thas, article 11 bc \rotcd on in parts and ¥ |
more cepecially, that the scoond paragraph be divided into two parts, a separate
vote bc:\.ng takon on the phrass "bu cxenpt from cautio Juaic‘.tum golvi®. :

Mr. HLRuENT (Belgium) pointed out that excaption from cautio ;udiea.gum
golvi wes already provided for undor the first scntonce of paragroph 2, which '
providcd that a rcfugec should enjoy 1n that rospoct the sanc rights a.nd ‘

privilcges as a national,

The PRUSIDENT pulcd tho diseussion closed and put paragraph 1 of-
article 11 to the vote. ' '

Poragraph 1 of articlc 11 was adopted unanimously .



A/CONF.2/SR.8 °
page 4
»
The PRESIDENT said that in order to meet. the Egyptian roprcsentativc‘a
uifficulty, he would put paragraph 2 to tho vetc in two parts-and in tomms of
substanca,

f _He would thoreforc first ask the Conferunce to deeide whethor a refugoo
should enjoy the bonefit of logal assistance in thc country in which he had his
hebitual residences

It was so agre unanimous : ) .

' The PR&SIDM then askod the Confercnce to deecide whethor it agrecd .
to the prindple that a refugee should be oxempt fron cautio judicatum solvi-
on the same conditions as a national in the country in which he had his
“habitual residonce.

- It vas so agreed vohes to
_ Poragraph 2 os orizinally drafted (A/CONF,2/1) was ado tod by 18 votcs to
ndnc, vr.i.th abstcntion " o

' Para. ra wa adopted b votos to th 1 ab tcntio .

Article 11 as’a whols was adopted by.19 votes to npnc th 1 ab teation,

§
&

¢ mocting rosc at 4,30 D.n.



